
 

 

West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

February 25, 2019 

 

Present: Win Johnson, Matt Kantola, Brett Myers, Mike Spackman, Tom Kenyon, Cathy 

Archibald, Jason Booth & Nate Pion (Aldrich + Elliott), Michael Bell, Ken Parrot, Laura 

Stillson, Edson Pierce, Colin Eggleton, Martha Harrison 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – None 

3) Informational Meeting: Upcoming bond vote on sewer and water projects – Win introduced 

Nate Pion and Jason Booth, consulting engineers with Aldrich + Elliott, and asked them to 

describe the projects and explain why they’re needed. Water Project: Nate said the water 

project consists of replacing and relocating two water lines that run under the ski bridge, one 

4” supply line and one 8” distribution line; adding a propane-powered generator to run the 

well pump during power outages; and building a more secure, insulated well house for the 

pump’s electronic controls. Nate said it appears that the water lines were put in prior to the 

ski bridge, which means they are buried 12’ to 18’ deep in some places. Nate added that they 

were constructed of Schedule 40 PVC, which is not as robust as PVC C-900. Win asked what 

would happen if one of the lines broke. Nate said if the 8” line broke, the hotel area would 

have no water; if the 4” line broke, the water in the reservoirs would not be replenished, so 

the amount of water available would be limited to whatever amount was present in the 

reservoirs at the time of the break. Nate said replacing and re-routing the lines around the 

bridge will make them more reliable and accessible. With regard to the need for a generator, 

Nate said, in a prolonged power outage, the amount of available water would be limited to 

the amount present in the reservoirs at the time of the outage. Nate also described the existing 

well house, which is about 4’ x 6’ on grade, with no slab and no insulation, and doesn’t 

provide adequate protection for the pump controls. Replacing the well house with a 6’ x 8’ 

insulated structure that meets electrical codes, on a concrete slab, is part of the project. 

Michael asked about the likelihood of one of the water lines breaking. Nate said it’s hard to 

say, which is why they recommend replacing them proactively to minimize the risk. Win said 

a break in the main 4” line would jeopardize the whole system. Nate said approximately 400’ 

of line will be replaced. Nate described the alternatives considered, which include doing 

nothing, but that could be costly if the town ends up needing to hire a contractor for an 

emergency repair. Nate said they also considered installing a receptacle for a portable 

generator, but that turned out to be more expensive and labor intensive than installing a 

permanent generator. The total cost for the water project is estimated to be $425,000. Nate 

said A+E is recommending a DWSRF loan for 20 years at 3%, which will be repaid by the 

water users, not the tax payers. The project is scheduled to begin this fall and be completed 

by the end of the year. Tom asked what would happen if the well pump failed. Nate said the 

pump was replaced at the end of 2015. Martha said last time, the town trucked in water and 

the fire department pumped it up to Reservoir #1. Win asked if we have a spare well pump. 

Jason said yes. Martha said if one of the water lines broke, we could run a flexible line over 

the surface. Nate said since there are hydrants on either side of the bridge, the underground 

lines could be bypassed temporarily although there would have to be a “boil water” notice. 

Michael said the Vermont 50 race is in September. Jason said that will be noted in the 

contract documents. Sewer Project: Jason said when the town purchased the sewer system in 

2014, they investigated the lines and manholes to identify deficiencies. Most of the system 



 

 

was built in the 1980s but some was built earlier so there’s a mixed bag of piping materials, 

including PVC and vitrified clay. Jason said deficiencies encountered include root intrusion, 

blockages, line sags, and cracks. Cracks and breaks result in exfiltration of wastewater into 

the surrounding soils, and infiltration of groundwater into the system. The purpose of the 

project is to address these deficiencies, minimize the risk of additional breaks and reduce 

long-term O&M costs. Jason described the proposed improvements in more detail and said 

the total project cost is estimated to be $700,000. The schedule is essentially the same as the 

schedule for the water project. Win asked what the experience will be for connected sewer 

users. Jason said there really shouldn’t be any delays or shut-offs; “in situ” work can be done 

while the sewer system is live. Matt asked if there are any issues that will not be addressed 

by this project. Jason said the project addresses 95% of the issues; there are two locations 

that are relatively low risk that are not included. Jason said the town is also developing a 

wastewater asset management plan and one recommendation will be to continue to monitor 

those locations. Mike asked if the sewer line that crosses Hotel Road will be replaced. Jason 

said no; there were no issues with that segment. Mike said there’s a bump in the road there, 

which the highway department has repaired, but it’s still not right. There was a question 

about line sags. Jason said the project will address the sub-base material and the pipe 

envelope, which will help with structural stability and, where pipes are being replaced, they 

will be replaced with better materials. Mike asked about the availability of grant funding. For 

the sewer project, Jason said the town went through a qualifications-based selection process, 

which qualifies the town for some subsidies in the form of principal forgiveness of 

engineering costs at the end of the project. For the water project, there is no grant funding 

available. Michael asked roughly how much the projects would cost per user per year. On the 

sewer side, Win said, we’re hoping that we can do this project with little or no increase in 

sewer rates although, as other costs increase, rates will also have to increase. Win said with 

the subsidies Jason just mentioned and the application of accumulated reserves, we hope 

there will not be a significant impact on sewer rates. On the water side, Win said, we think 

there will be at least a 10% increase in rates because the Water Fund does not have as much 

money in reserve and there are no subsidies. Matt asked if the projects could come in under 

budget. Nate said they tried to be conservative in their estimates so there’s always a chance 

that they could come in under budget. There’s a 10% construction contingency in the 

estimate because when you’re excavating you never know what you’re going to find. Jason 

said he thinks there’s less cost risk in the sewer project. Win said the bonds for the projects 

will be voted on by Australian ballot at Town Meeting on March 5th. Unfortunately, however, 

we’ve encountered a bump in the road: the town’s paper of record did not publish the legal 

notices for three consecutive weeks as required. As a result, Win said, assuming the vote is 

positive, we will have to have another special meeting and another Australian ballot vote to 

validate the first vote.  

4) Schedule Special Town Meeting to validate water & sewer bond votes – Matt moved to 

schedule a special town meeting for March 28th to validate the March 5th water and 

sewer bond votes. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

5) Schedule Informational Meeting prior to Special Town Meeting – Matt moved to schedule 

an informational meeting on March 25th prior to the March 28th special town meeting. 

Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

6) Approve and adopt Resolution & Warning for the validation of sewer and water bond votes – 

Brett moved to approve and sign the resolution and warning. Matt seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously.  



 

 

7) Approve and adopt Form of Ballot for the validation of sewer and water bond votes – Brett 

moved to approve and adopt the ballot for the validation of the sewer and water bond 

votes. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

8) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

9) Sign Town Clerk’s orders – Brett moved to sign orders. Matt seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

10) Weathersfield Transfer Station – Win said Weathersfield is increasing their rates and will no 

longer allow West Windsor to have dump stickers and punch cards without paying for them 

in advance. Cathy said you can also no longer get a second sticker for $5. There was 

discussion about whether West Windsor should continue to offer punch cards since they’re 

available elsewhere. The consensus was that Cathy will still offer stickers and punch cards at 

the Town Office but will purchase small quantities and replenish the supply as needed.  

11) Event application by Lucy Mackenzie Humane Society for a Cabin Fever Italian Supper on 

March 9th from 5:30 PM until 8:30 PM at 4832 Route 44 – Win asked about alcohol. Martha 

said it’s BYOB. Win asked if they have contacted the police department. Martha said she 

doesn’t believe so. Win asked about the number of participants. Martha said they’re 

expecting 100 at each seating. Brett moved to approve the application on the condition 

that they notify the Windsor Police Department about the event. Matt seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously.  

12) Event application by Michael Bell (on behalf of VSECU) and Ascutney Outdoors for the 

Point to Point Road & Mtn. Bike Ride (fundraiser for VT Foodbank) on August 10, 2019 

from 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM at the Ascutney Outdoors Ctr., main parking lot, and local roads & 

trails – Win asked if this is the event that involves closing Ski Tow Road. Michael said yes. 

Michael said there will be three road courses, a gravel ride, a trail ride and a trail run. 

Michael said the 100-mile ride will start at 7:00 AM and will be much quieter than it was last 

year. Michael said there will be no fires. Skinny Pancake is doing the catering and they have 

a liquor license. Matt moved to approve the application for the Point to Point Road and 

Mountain Bike Ride. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Martha 

said she and Michael have been discussing water usage for the event. Martha noted that she 

heard from the state that they are going to issue us a new Permit to Operate for our water 

system with a higher maximum day demand (MDD). Martha said she will share the specifics 

with Michael.   

13) Event application by Michael Bell and Ascutney Outdoors for the Ragnar Trail Running 

Relay Race from August 15th until August 17th (with set up to begin on 8/11 and clean up to 

end by 8/19) – This application was not received and will be considered at a later meeting.  

14) Liquor License application for March 24th VT Overland Maple Adventure Ride – Cathy said 

Trail Break Taps & Tacos has applied for a license to serve alcohol at the Maple Adventure 

Ride on March 24th from 11:00 AM until 4:00 PM. Brett moved to approve the 

application. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  
15) Highway Access application: Schofield (Rush Meadow Road) – Mike said some trees will 

have to be removed on the south side. Matt moved to approve the application subject to 

the tree removal and all the usual access conditions. Brett seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  

16) Highway Foreman’s report – Sand & salt: Mike said they’ll probably haul sand next week as 

a precautionary measure; there’s currently enough for three or four more storms. Mike said 

he also ordered three more loads of salt for $8,000. Radio: Mike said the repeater is only 

working intermittently right now so someone is coming next week to look at it. Excavator: 

Mike said the excavator will be here in April.  



 

 

17) Sign Municipal Roads General Permit Planning Report – Brett moved to authorize Win to 

sign the report. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

18) Sign Better Roads grant report – Brett moved to authorize Win to sign the report. Matt 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

19) Sign engagement agreement with Mudgett, Jennett & Krogh-Wisner for 2018 Audit – Brett 

moved to sign the agreement. Win seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

Matt asked about the cost. Win said it’s roughly the same as last year.  

20) Consider signing MOU accepting transfer of Library ownership to Town – Win said the 

Library Trustees met last week and signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). Win 

said he was present at that meeting and agreed to present the MOU to the Selectboard for 

consideration. If the Selectboard signs the MOU, then the voters will vote at Town Meeting 

whether to accept the transfer of the property, including the contents, to the Town for $1. If 

the voters approve the transfer, then the Library Trustees will resign and the Selectboard will 

appoint a Board of Trustees to govern the Library. Matt moved to sign the MOU. Brett 

seconded the motion. Tom asked when the Selectboard will appoint the Trustees. Win said 

either at the Selectboard’s organizational meeting or its next regular meeting. Win asked if 

all the trustees want to be reappointed. Tom said yes. Win called for a vote on the motion, 

which passed unanimously. Win said he has had some inquiries from others who may want 

to join the Library Board but he’ll bring that up when the time comes. Win said the 

Selectboard has to appoint at least five trustees but can appoint more than five if they think it 

would be beneficial.  

21) Consider moving NEMRC modules to NEMRC Cloud Services system – Win said there is 

no setup charge but there will be five users. Win said moving the town’s financial records to 

the cloud will make recovery much easier in the event of a disaster. Matt made a motion to 

move West Windsor’s NEMRC accounting modules to the NEMRC Cloud Services 

system. Win seconded the motion. Tom asked if the Auditors were consulted. Win said no, 

but the Auditors will have access to the same information they have now; this change just 

makes the records more secure. Win called for a vote on the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  
22) Continue Noise Ordinance review – Win said Ken Parrot pointed out to him that there is a 

provision in the zoning ordinance that could be used to address unresolved neighborhood 

noise problems, although enforcement would be through the Zoning Administrator and the 

DRB rather than the police. Win said there’s sentiment in town that another ordinance is 

something we should try to avoid, but there’s also sentiment from those who have been 

subject to the recent noise problems that they need help. Win said it has also been suggested 

that more than one municipal official should investigate complaints and concur that the noise 

is unreasonable before taking action. Laura said it can be difficult to approach neighbors in 

this type of situation, especially if they are not truthful and refuse to take responsibility for 

their actions, as was the case with the recent incidents. Matt and Brett said they are in favor 

of adopting an ordinance so the town can address the problem when neighbors can’t work it 

out amongst themselves. Brett asked when a resident should call the police. Win said we 

can’t tell people when to call the police and when not to call the police. Win said he’d like to 

allow time for the Planning Commission to comment on the noise provisions in the zoning 

regulations before making a decision. Win said he would rather not have redundant 

regulations. There was discussion about how many officials should investigate the complaint, 

and how they would go about investigating it. There was agreement that three municipal 

officials, including two Selectboard members, should be involved. Ken asked if the Zoning 

Administrator can delegate the enforcement. Martha said no, which she thinks is problematic 



 

 

if someone is setting off fireworks in the middle of the night or shooting on Sunday morning. 

Win said photos and videos are helpful, along with testimony from multiple sources. Ken 

said the day after he, Matt and Nancy went to talk to the people who were making the noise, 

they went right back to doing it. Tom asked if the ordinance would address barking dogs. 

Win said it could.  

23) Town Report availability – Win said Town Reports are available at the Post Office and the 

Town Hall. In the past, they have not been provided at the store. Brett suggested putting a 

handful of Town Reports at the store for people to look at while they’re there. Matt agreed 

and suggested writing “store copy” on them. Win suggested also having some behind the 

counter that are available on request for people to take home. Alternatively, Matt said, people 

could be directed to the Town Office if they want a copy to take home. Matt agreed to put 

three “store copies” at the store. Win also noted that some towns have their Town Reports 

available on the town website. Win asked how much that would cost. Martha said she doesn’t 

think there’s any cost for the printer to provide a pdf along with the printed copies. Win said 

he doesn’t think there’s any harm in having a pdf copy on the web, and asked if anyone has 

any objections. There were no objections. Win asked Martha to find out how much it would 

cost to get a pdf. If there’s little or no cost, Win said, let’s make it a practice to put a pdf of 

the Town Report on our website.  

24) Water & Sewer Utilities – No report.  

25) Preparation for Town Meeting – Win said after we wrote Article 5, we made a small change 

in the budget so three of the numbers are incorrect. Win said Article 5 should say $637,862 

for the General Fund, $1,364,030 for Combined, and $254,427 for non-tax revenues. Win 

said these changes will be announced at Town Meeting. Win asked if the Library Trustees 

will address Article 6. Tom said yes. Win said Article 8 includes “with such funds to be 

raised by taxes,” which is incorrect and needs to be amended at Town Meeting to read “with 

such funds coming from a prior year General Fund surplus.” Win said he’d like to put a 

notice of this change in the Front Porch Forum. Matt moved to approve the wording for 

the notice in the Front Porch Forum. Brett seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. Win said we also need to skip over Article 11 because it’s redundant now that 

the contribution to the Listers Fund is included in the budget. Win asked Matt and Mike to 

address Article 8 at the meeting. There was discussion about where the sand pile will go if 

the Town acquires the Burke property. Brett said people are also wondering why we need to 

move the Fire Station. Mike said we need an alternate site in case we have another flood 

because the state may not allow us to rebuild it there. Martha said we may also have 

difficulty getting flood insurance if we have repeat damage.  

26) Other Business – Bulletin board: Brett asked if the bulletin board is up at the store. Mike said 

he put it up.  

27) Approve Minutes – Brett moved to approve the minutes of February 11th. Matt seconded 

the motion, which passed unanimously.  

28) Adjourn – Brett moved to adjourn at 8:10 PM. Matt seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


